
South Haven City Hall is barrier free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City 
Hall.    

 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, May 20, 2013 
7:00 p.m., Basement, City Hall 
 

                            City of South Haven 

 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – February 25, 2013 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
NEW BUSINESS –Variance Requests - Public Hearings 
 
6. Four Leaf Homes, LLC is asking for a variance to install a sign which identifies the 

relocated entrance to Pleasant View Estates manufactured home park on property 
located1223 and 1233 Phoenix Street (Meijer property). The proposed off-premise sign is 
not permitted in the B-4 zoning district. The parcel number for the variance request is 80-53-
869-009-10. 

 
7. Janet and Wesley Todd, 327 Eagle Street, request a front yard variance from zoning 

ordinance section 402-1 to extend a porch to 12 inches from the property line. The property 
number for the request is 80-53-020-002-00. 

 
8. Leonard and Lynette Stack, 320 Eagle Street, request a front yard variance from zoning 

ordinance section 402-1 to extend an open porch to 6 feet from the property line where 9 
feet is required. The property number for the request is 80-53-019-004-00. 

 
9. Member Comments 
 
10. Adjourn 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 



South Haven City Hall is Barrier-free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary reasonable auxiliary aids 
and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed 
materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to 
the South Haven City Clerk. Individuals with disabilities requiring services should contact the City Clerk by writing or 
calling South Haven City Hall at (269) 637-0750. 

Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 



 

 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Monday, February 25, 2013 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                            City of South Haven 

 

 
 

1. Call to Order by Chair Ingersoll at 7:00 PM. 
 
2. Roll Call  

 
Present: Boyd, Lewis, Paull, Ingersoll, Wheeler, Wittkop.                                      
Absent unexcused: Miller.  
Also present Linda Anderson, Zoning Administrator 

 
3. Approval of Agenda: All ayes 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – January 28, 2013: All ayes 
 
5. No public comment was received. 
 
NEW BUSINESS –Variance Request 
 
6. The Historic Association of South Haven requested a variance to place a freestanding 

identification sign on their property at 353 Hubbard Street. This type of sign is not permitted 
in the R-1B zoning district per zoning ordinance section 2008-1.  The parcel number for the 
applicant property is 80-53-548-008-00. 
 
Anderson introduced the request.  
 
Motion by Lewis, support by Wittkop to open the public hearing. All ayes. 
 
Boyd asked if the Historical Association charges admission. The applicant, Ed Appleyard, 
replied that they accept donations but do not have an admission fee. Boyd questioned how 
this use is different from a business which would need to comply with strict sign rules. He 
asked if a business could install a sign as requested here. Anderson explained that different 
zoning districts have different sign regulations and few, if any, businesses are located in 
residential zoning districts. The exception being certain home occupations. 
 
Boyd stated that some businesses have sandwich board signs that are taken in at night. He 
questioned if that was an option here. Anderson stated that sandwich board signs are not 
permitted in the residential zones. If that was requested, a variance would be needed. 
 



February 25, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 
 

2 
 

Boyd asked if the matter could be referred to the planning commission with a request to 
amend the zoning ordinance to allow certain nonprofit identification signs in residential 
zones. Ingersol stated that the role of the ZBA is to provide relief from zoning regulations, 
when applicable. He further stated that a zoning ordinance amendment would take several 
months, creating an unnecessary hardship for the applicant. 
 
Motion by Lewis, supported by Wheeler, to close the public hearing. All ayes. 
 
Ingersol stated that this is a situation common in the city and many such signs are found in 
residential zones. The common thread is that the uses with the signs are non-profit or 
governmental land uses. He believes this use is similar to other such uses and the sign 
should be permitted. He further stated that the use is a public asset and provides a public 
service to the community. 
 
There was a discussion regarding the request and compliance with all the standards of 
zoning ordinance section 2205. Following that discussion there was a motion made by Paull, 
supported by Wheeler, to approve the request based on the fact that all standards of section 
2205 were met. A condition was placed on the motion that the sign be placed back on the 
property so as not to interfere with clear vision. Before the sign is installed, the zoning 
administrator will meet on site with the applicant to establish the appropriate setback for the 
sign.  
 
Ayes: Lewis, Apotheker, Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop. 
Nay: Boyd 
 
A second motion was made by Lewis, supported by Boyd, to request that the planning 
commission look at this issue when considering amendments to the zoning ordinance. All 
ayes. 

 
7. There were no member comments. 
 
8. Motion by Wittkop, supported by Paull, to adjourn the meeting at 8:45 PM. All ayes. 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

May 20, 2013 

Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6 

Off-premise Sign on Meijer Property 

 
 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: The development of the Meijer property has resulted in the MDOT 
requested closure of the access drive to Pleasant View Estates from Phoenix Street. Traffic to 
Pleasant View and to any future commercial businesses on that property will now be rerouted 
through the Meijer entrance on Phoenix Street. Since the driveway to the manufactured park 
has moved to the west, the owner is asking that the sign also be moved closer to the new drive. 
 
The location chosen for the new sign is on city property owned by Meijer’s. The manufactured 
home park is on property owned by Four Leaf Homes. Relocating the sign will result in a sign 
that is identifying a use not on the property on which the sign is located. This is counter to 
zoning ordinance section 2004 – 6 which prohibits billboards and off-premise signs except 
under certain conditions not met with this application.  
 
Recommendation: Staff believes that granting the variance to relocate the sign is necessary to 
provide adequate direction to motorists seeking the drive to the residences and future 
businesses located on the site.  
 
Support Material: 
 
Completed Application 
Staff Findings of Fact  
 



EVELOPMENT CORPC)K.\ 

pril 24, 2013 

Linda S. Anderson//City Planner//Zoning Administrator 
ity of South Haven // Office (269) 637-0760 
uilding Services Department, 

539 Phoenix Street, 
South Haven, MI 49090 // 
www landersonsouth-hi. 

Re: Zoning Variance Request 

Four Leaf Homes 

Dear Linda, 

I am assisting Four Leaf Homes, LLC with an application for a variance that will allow them to relocate 

and improve their entrance sign. 

Please find enclosed: 

1. Zoning Variance Request signed by Meijer Corporation (owner) and Michael P. Callaghan managing 

member of Four Leaf Homes, LLC (the applicant) 

3. Check # 2693 for $300.00 

3. Response to conditions list from the application prepared by FTC&H engineers. 

4. Meijer site plan with current and proposed sign locations 

5. Photo of existing Pleasant View Estates sign 

6. Photo of existing Pleasant View Estates sign showing dimensions. 

7. Preliminary sign drawing. 

I will be at the meeting on May 20 Th  but please do not hesitate to call or email if you have any questions 
or need additional information. 

Best regards, 

Cindi Compton 

Osage Development Corporation 
269-214-2459 

comptonlandimprovement@gmail.com  

1201 8th Avenue 	PO Box 487 	South Haven, MI 49090 	Phone 269.637.5188 	Fax 269.637.7224 



ZONING VARIANCE REQUEST 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

539 PHOENIX STREET, SOUTH HAVEN, MICHIGAN 49090 
FOR INFORMATION CALL 269-637-0760 

NOTE: Incomplete applications will not be processed. A fee of $300 will be required at the 
time the application is submitted. 

Name' 
	

Ze", 4f6A4' 5 CZE„ /V/CHA00-4 (/141.4-,01‘;../1/4^.. '  

Address 79et, 	 (c),,z, 2-0 e  

Address of 
Property in Question: le';" 	2 2, 	 5-r 

7-1 

Name of Property Owner(s):  L-7(1,L10//.1-•  

Present Zoning of Neighboring Properties to the : 

North 	  South  8 't 	East. 	/V.  West  /91  

Which Sections of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance are 
Please indicate Section and Paragraph numbers. (City 
variance(s) are required) 

Section(s):  .19AWz.:: ej 	X X .....5'4.-7( 0770.A)  

you requesting a variance from? 
staff will help determine which 

770 -k/ 0-0911 

 

Under Article XXII, Section 2205 of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance. the Zoning Board of 
Appeals may not grant a variance from the regulations within the Ordinance unless  certain 
conditions exist. No variance in the provisions of this Ordinance shall be authorized unless the 
Board finds, from reasonable evidence, that all of the following standards have been met: 

1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 

2 Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 

3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved. or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). 

Rev 07x'2011 

Date:   )1-247 -20A3 

Phone:  7e? . 7e44/5-31,1  

Present Zoning 
of Property: 	 



4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right 
similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in the vicinity. The 
possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a 
variance. 

5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
properly, for which the variance is sought. is not of so general or recurrent a nature as to make 
reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such conditions or situation, 

6 The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
property, for which the variance is sought. shall not be the result of actions of the property 
owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 

7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height. bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose. or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome 

8 That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 

9, That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant 



Applicant Signature 

I hereby give permission for the members of the Zoning Board of Appeals and City Staff to 
access and insect the pr perty in question for the purpose of gathering information to make an 
informed de his, ariance requ 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE AND SUBMITTED TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR THEIR 
REVIEW. I REALIZE THAT ANY INFORMATION THAT I SUPPLY THAT IS NOT CORRECT 
COULD VOID ANY DECISION BY THE BOARD ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT IF THE 
VARIANCE IS GRANTED BY THE BOARD, THE WORK WITHIN THE REQUEST MUST BE 
CARRIED OUT WITHIN ONE YEAR OF THE PUBLIC HEARING OR THE VARIANCE 
BECOMES NULL AND VOID . 

_9/,611 '67~1 

e,:j er 

Date 



nwmo 	  

"0026930 1:0 7 2 14000s 21: 7 L6 LO S 30 25e 

OSAGE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 	

VC 	2693 
City of South Haven 
	

4/24/2013 
Four Leaf ZBA application 

	
300.00 

FIFTH THIRD BANK 
GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49503 

74-5/724 

VC 	269 

4/24/2013 

*300.00 

POST OFFICE BOX 487 
SOUTH HAVEN, MI 49090 
269-637-5188 
compton@verizon.net  

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

C4ay to the 
dot 61' City of South Haven 

Three  Hundred  and  00/1 0 0 ******************************************************Ir**************trirk************************# 	„ 

)610 

City of South Haven 

Fifth Third Checking 
	

300.00 



frc&h. 
Four Leaf Properties Zoning Variance Request 

FTC&H Project Number: G130237 

Date: April 30, 2013 

Requested Variance for Section 2008.3 - Permitted Signs: To relocate and improve the existing Four Leaf 

Properties/Pleasant View Mobile Home Park off-premises freestanding sign on a 265-foot frontage 

parcel in B-4 zoning along Phoenix Road adjacent to the 1-196 southbound off-ramp. (There are two 

signs on this 265-foot frontage parcel: the approved Meijer gas station price point sign and the existing 

Pleasant View sign). 

1. Such variance will not be detrimental to the adjacent property and the surrounding neighborhood. 

• The requested variance allows relocation and improvement of an existing non-conforming 

freestanding sign to facilitate the applicant's off-premises property sharing the Meijer 

ingress/egress drive off of Phoenix Road. 

• The MDOT off-ramp eliminates the Four Leaf Properties (Four Leaf) frontage along Phoenix Road 

causing the property to have a no signage designation. As a result, Meijer has granted Four Leaf 

an easement allowing the relocation of the sign to be consistent with the relocated driveway. 

This grant of the easement provides written support for the requested variance. 

• Such variance brings the relocated and improved sign into compliance with B-4 zoning. 

• Surrounding properties or other existing signs will not be obstructed or obscured by the 

relocated freestanding sign. 

• The surrounding neighborhood is also zoned B-4 and contains commercial signage. 

• All surrounding neighboring uses have similar freestanding signs. 

2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 

"The perceived intent of the Signs Ordinance is to prevent hazards to traffic and pedestrians, improve 

community appearance, and promote economic development through regulating the construction, size, 

location, and number of signs." 

• Such variance allows the relocation and improvement of an existing non-compliant Four Leaf 

freestanding off-premises sign. This will improve community appearance and promote economic 

development. 

• The existing freestanding sign is non-compliant as unpermitted off-premises and crosses the 

MDOT right-of-way line. The variance will improve this condition by relocating the existing sign 

within a permanent dedicated easement along the shared Meijer ingress/egress drive, will not 

cross any right-of-way lines, and brings the sign into compliance with the B-4 zoning ordinance. 

• The relocated sign is sized in accordance with B-4 zoning ordinance. 

• The location of the relocated sign is compliant with Clear Vision Corners (Section 1712) not 

obstructing the view of traffic. 

• The location of the relocated sign does not obstruct pedestrian paths. 

3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in question or to the 

intended use of the property not applying generally to other properties in the same zoning district. 

Such circumstances shall create a practical difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical 

conditions such as narrowness, shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved or to the 

intended use of the property. See Section 2204(2). 

\2013 \ 130237 \ WORK \PERMITSREGULATORY \SIGN VARIANCE REQUEST.DOCX 



fireyh 
• Extraordinary circumstances or conditions applying to the Meijer property/Four Leaf easement: 

o Four Leaf has agreed to abandon and relocate the current access drive off Phoenix Drive to a 

new shared route on the Meijer parcel serving both Meijer and the applicant as requested 

by MDOT during the Meijer site plan approval process. 

o The existing non-compliant Four Leaf freestanding sign is not adjacent to the new shared 

ingress/egress drive. 

() Meijer has negotiated an easement within the shared ingress/egress drive for the relocation 

of the Four Leaf sign. 

o The current geometry of the Meijer property is limited to approximately 265 feet of 

continuous lineal street frontage along Phoenix Road by the MDOT I-196 southbound 

off-ramp triangle located east of the property. This is less than 300 feet of continuous lineal 

street frontage required for two freestanding signs under the current ordinance. However, if 

the MDOT off-ramp triangle does not restrict the length, the Meijer parcel gains an 

additional 42 feet of continuous lineal street frontage along Phoenix Road. The additional 

42 feet brings the frontage length to a total of approximately 306 feet, therefore allowing 

two freestanding signs on the Meijer parcel under the current ordinance. 

4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right similar 

to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and vicinity. The possibility of 

increased financial return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 

• Similar B-4 properties are not restricted by an interstate off-ramp right-of-way and shared 

access easements such that the number of signs cannot serve the parcels within the subject 

property. 

• Relocating and improving the Four Leaf sign preserves the right to adequate signage for the 

entryway as in the past and is currently enjoyed by all surrounding B-4 neighbors. 

5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said property, 

for which the variance is sought, is not of a general or recurrent nature as to make reasonably 

practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such condition or situation. 

• Four Leaf has agreed to abandon and relocate the current access drive off Phoenix Drive to a 

new shared route on the Meijer parcel serving both Meijer and the applicant as specifically 

requested by MDOT and engineered for the health, safety, and welfare of the motoring public. 

• Relocating the existing non-compliant freestanding sign to the easement on the shared Meijer 

ingress/egress drive is necessary for the applicant to advertise and direct traffic flow to the 

property. 

• Four Leaf cannot utilize other types of signage (i.e., wall or projecting signs) to serve its parcel as 

it is off-premises and has no frontage or direct visibility to Phoenix Road. 

6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said property, 

for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions by the property owner. In other 

words, the problem shall not be self-created. 

• The individual and collective geometry of the eight existing parcels assembled into the Meijer 

site was not created by the applicant or the pre-development property owners. 

• The existing ingress/egress easements serving the Four Leaf property were not created by the 

applicant or property owners. 

• The intended use of the property is consistent with the property zoning designation. 

ZA2013 \ 130237 \ WORK \ PERMITSREGULATORY \ SIGN VARIANCE REQUEST.DOCX 



fi[c&h 
• The MDOT off-ramp location created by the State of Michigan eliminates the applicant's direct 

frontage along Phoenix Drive. 

• Development of the Meijer ingress/egress drive was outside of the applicant's control and 

unforeseen during original sign installation. 

7. Strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk, or density would unreasonably prevent 

the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose or would render conformity 

unnecessarily burdensome. 

• Strict enforcement of the Signs Ordinance would eliminate the freestanding sign upon any 

removal or replacement activity and be unnecessarily burdensome to the applicant. Without 

adequate signage, the applicant would lose significant property value without the ability to 

clearly identify the access point and use of the property. 

8. The variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the inequality inherent in 

the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 

• The improvements to the existing sign bring the sign size to 48 square feet (8 feet horizontal by 

6 feet vertical) which is less than the 160 square feet allowed. 

• The Four Leaf sign is only being relocated, allowing the project to not include the need for an 

additional freestanding sign. 

• Improvements to the relocated sign will upgrade the aesthetic for the community. 

9. The variance will relate only to the property under control of the applicant. 

• The variance is requested within an easement Meijer has granted for the relocation and sharing 

of the access drive with Four Leaf. Four Leaf has the legal control and right to place the sign at 

this location. 

Z: \2013 \130237 \ WORK \ PERM ITSREGULATORY \SIGN VARIANCE REQUEST.DOCX 



me!jer. 

C200 PARKING ISLAND DETAILS SITE LAYOUT/PAVEMENT PLAN Al  
KALE  • 1 

AV57A114 tonfroA/ 

— 

;mem .7:1,4 

1•61•1• .•••••■•••••• 

am so 
•••■•••• 	 t•I 

A• 

■1•4•0••• 

ollat 

J120226271 

tam. 

ACREAGE SUMMARY 

041 ,111111131 	 VIA 
1601 	 liSl. 

Dom 4.411•■■•Noto 
v/4"/JON 

MANDL 114IND 

NOW WV 110•1011 

OFM1 .111.1.1■ 10 

OW.% 1.01.02 

• 1,,,E 71Mat 141, 11,10.2• Mt. OM 

,1140.:1•44.110■0•11 0041 ■IRNMI. • , 4 

ICAII ∎  1.  • Of 

—AL 





W,  • 

7.4 



PLEASANTVIEW - SOUTH HAVEN 

PRELIMINARY SIGNAGE PLAN 

8' 

12' 

EASEMENT DESCRIPTION 

Signage. Meijer hereby grants GE (for the benefit of the GE Parcel) a perpetual, exclusive (but for the 

rights of Meijer under Sections 2 and 3 below) easement (the "Signage Easement") over, across, under 

and through the Signage Easement Area to erect, maintain, improve, light, enlarge or reduce, repair, 

and from time to time replace a sign (the "Signage") and for the installation and use of utility lines to 

service the Signage Easement Area, and for ingress and egress to and from the Signage Easement 

Area, to and from publicly dedicated streets or easement areas. The Signage shall be a monument sign 

not more than eight feet (8') in height and having not more than fifty (50) square feet of signage. GE 

shall not install the Signage until such time as GE has received all necessary governmental approvals 

for the Signage. Meijer shall cooperate with GE, at no additional cost to Meijer, in GE obtaining such 

approvals. Meijer shall not erect or place signs, improvements or other objects on the Meijer Parcel in 

locations that would materially impair the visibility of the Signage from Phoenix Road, provided, 

however, GE acknowledges that the Meijer signage on the East side of the Ring Drive shall not be 

considered to materially impair visibility. 



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2013 
ADDRESS:  1223 and 1233 Phoenix Street 
ZONING DISTRICT:  B-4 Major Thoroughfare Business 
LOT DIMENSIONS:  265 feet frontage 
LOT AREA:  23 acres 
LOT COVERAGE:  NA 
REQUIRED SETBACKS:  Signs shall be at least 20 feet from any property line (Sec 
1002-4) 
EXISTING SETBACKS:  NA 
PROPOSED SETBACKS:  20 feet (sign only) 
VARIANCE REQUEST:  Four Leaf Homes, LLC is asking for a variance to install a 
monument sign which identifies the relocated entrance to Pleasant View Estates 
manufactured home park on property located1223 and 1233 Phoenix Street (Meijer 
property). Because the proposed sign marks the entrance to a use not on the Meijer 
property, the sign is considered off-premise. The off-premise signs are not permitted in 
the B-4 zoning district. The parcel number for the variance request is 80-53-869-009-10. 
  
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood.  
Staff finds the proposed sign will not have a negative effect on the surrounding 
properties. Pleasant View Estates has had a sign on city property for several years 
while the park was actually in the township. This request only updates and 
relocates the sign to the new entrance to the property.  
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
The zoning ordinance (Section 2000) states that the intent of the sign ordinance is 

to prevent traffic hazards; to provide safer conditions for pedestrians; to improve 

community appearance; and to promote economic development by regulating the 

construction, alteration, repair, maintenance, size, location and number of signs. 

 

The relocation of the existing sign with a new sign will further the purpose of the 

ordinance provided all requirements of the B-4 zoning district are met. The 

relocation of the sign to a location near the actual entrance to the manufactured 

home park and any future businesses which may use that drive will help improve 

traffic flow and safety along Phoenix Street. 
    
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property 
in question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to 
other properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a 
practical difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such 
as narrowness, shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to 
the intended use of the property. See Section 2204(2).  
This is a unique situation in that the entrance to a township commercial property 
is located on city property.  It is also unusual in that the state of Michigan (MDOT) 



has requested that the existing drive to the township property be relocated to the 
main Meijer store entrance. This is not a situation that will occur commonly, if 
ever, again.  
 
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the 
same zoning district and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial 
return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
This variance will grant to property owners the necessary signage to identify their 
businesses. This is a right enjoyed by other properties in the B-4 district and does 
not differentiate this owner as having a singular economic motive. 
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or 
recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general 
regulation for such conditions or situation. 
As explained before, this is a very unique situation.  At this time, it is 
recommended that the ordinance be left as it now reads and each sign of this type 
be considered on a case by case basis. 
  
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of 
actions of the property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created.  
The property owner did not create this situation. It is the result of a traffic 
generating land use crossing jurisdictional boundaries and a request from MDOT 
to relocate an existing access.   
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density 
would unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted 
purpose, or would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome.  
Strict enforcement would result in the manufactured home park and any future 
commercial uses not having an identification sign marking the entrance to the 
property. The sign would need to be placed so far back on the property as to be 
rendered useless. 
 
 8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome 
the inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
The applicants are asking for a sign which is smaller than that allowed in the B-4 
zoning district. In addition, the changeable nature of the sign will prevent the need 
for additional signs on the property to advertise future uses.  
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
The variance request only involves the property currently under the control of the 
Meijer Corporation. 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

May 20, 2013 

Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #7 

Todd Front Setback Variance 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: The required setback for a dwelling wall is 15 feet. Open 
stairs, porches and patios may extend up to 6 feet into the setback area allowing a 
setback of 9 feet. This property has an existing setback of 8 feet to the dwelling wall and 
an open porch extending to within 4 feet of the right-of-way. The applicant asks to 
extend the porch another 3 feet toward the front property line resulting in a setback of 
one foot.  

 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the ZBA members review the application, staff 
findings of fact and the physical property before making a determination on the variance. The 
members must find that the request complies with all standards of zoning ordinance section 
2205 to approve a variance. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Completed Application w/ Photos 
Staff Findings of Fact 
 























8'6'
15'

327 Eagle St front Setback

327 Eagle St325 Eagle St

Disclaimer: 
Measurements are approximate and should be verified.
Measurements are from the property line to the nearest 
enclosed portion of the house.

329 Eagle St
(Vacant)



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2013 
ADDRESS:  327 Eagle Street  
ZONING DISTRICT:  R-1A Residential 
LOT DIMENSIONS:  50x130 
LOT AREA:  6534 square feet 
LOT COVERAGE:  <20% current; NC proposed; 40% maximum allowed 
REQUIRED FRONT SETBACK: The required setback for a dwelling wall is 15 feet. 
Open stairs, porches and patios may extend up to 6 feet into the setback area allowing a 
setback of 9 feet. This property has an existing setback of 8 feet to the dwelling wall and 
an open porch extending to within 4 feet of the right-of-way.   
 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicant asks to extend the porch another 3 feet toward 
the front property line resulting in a setback of one foot.  
  
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood.  
This neighborhood has several residences that were constructed close to the 
front lot lines, including some structures that are built to the lot line. The request 
is not of an unusual nature for this neighborhood.  
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
It is the intent of the R1A zoning district to preserve the character of the single-
family neighborhoods. The proposed porch extension will improve the 
appearance of the property and will not impair the intent of the residential 
purpose.    
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property 
in question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to 
other properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a 
practical difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such 
as narrowness, shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to 
the intended use of the property. See Section 2204(2).  
Staff does not find exceptional or extraordinary conditions as far as lot size or 
configuration in this neighborhood.  Most residences in this area were 
constructed close to the front lot line regardless of the depth of the lot.  
  
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the 
same zoning district and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial 
return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
Most residences in the city have front porches. The size of the porch and the 
proposed encroachment into the required front yard are choices made by the 
applicant. There does not appear to be any financial motive for the improvements 



the applicant has requested. The applicant would construct the porch for personal 
use. 
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or 
recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general 
regulation for such conditions or situation. 
This does not appear to be a recurrent type of variance request in this zoning 
district as a whole. On this block of Eagle Street, however, the request is not 
uncommon due to the short front setback that exists. Staff does not recommend 
amending the zoning ordinance to permit a decrease in front setback for this 
particular neighborhood only. It is more prudent to consider these requests as 
they arise. 
  
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of 
actions of the property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created.  
The problem is not self-created except in the sense that the applicant would like a 
larger porch. 
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density 
would unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted 
purpose, or would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome.  
Without the requested variance, the applicant would not be permitted to enlarge 
his porch. Whether that is unnecessarily burdensome is a decision for the ZBA. 
 
 8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome 
the inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
The reason the applicant requests the variance is that the existing porch is too 
small to be of any purpose and limits the owner from fully opening the front door. 
Any reduction in the request would not grant the owner significant additional use 
of the porch.  
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

May 20, 2013 

Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #8 

Stack Front Setback Variance 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: The required setback for a dwelling wall in the R1-A zoning district is 
15 feet. Open stairs, porches and patios may extend up to 6 feet into the setback area allowing 
a setback of 9 feet. This property has an open patio 9 feet from the front property line, which 
complies with zoning requirements. The applicant asks to extend the patio another 3 feet toward 
the front property line resulting in a setback of 6 feet. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the ZBA members review the application, staff 
findings of fact and the physical property before making a determination on the variance. The 
members must find that the request complies with all standards of zoning ordinance section 
2205 to approve a variance. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Completed Application w/ Photos 
Staff Findings of Fact 
 

















STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2013 
ADDRESS:  320 Eagle Street  
ZONING DISTRICT:  R-1A Residential 
LOT DIMENSIONS:  40x100 
LOT AREA:  4000 square feet 
LOT COVERAGE:  43% current; NC proposed; 40% maximum allowed 
REQUIRED FRONT SETBACK: The required setback for a dwelling wall in this zone is 
15 feet. Open stairs, porches and patios may extend up to 6 feet into the front setback 
area resulting in a setback of 9 feet. This property has an existing front patio setback of 
9 feet which complies with zoning requirements.   
 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicant asks to extend the patio another 3 feet toward the 
front property line resulting in a setback of 6 feet.  
  
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood.  
This neighborhood has several residences that were constructed close to the 
front lot lines, including some structures that are built to the lot line. The request 
is not of an unusual nature for this neighborhood.  
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
It is the intent of the R1A zoning district to preserve the character of the single-
family neighborhoods. The proposed patio extension will improve the appearance 
of the property and will not impair the intent of the residential purpose.    
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property 
in question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to 
other properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a 
practical difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such 
as narrowness, shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to 
the intended use of the property. See Section 2204(2).  
Staff does not find exceptional or extraordinary conditions as far as lot size or 
configuration in this neighborhood.  Most residences in this area were 
constructed close to the front lot line regardless of the depth of the lot.  
  
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the 
same zoning district and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial 
return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
Most residences in the city have front porches. The size of the patio and the 
proposed encroachment into the required front yard are choices made by the 
applicant. There does not appear to be any financial motive for the improvements 
the applicant has requested. The applicant would construct the patio for personal 
use. 



 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or 
recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general 
regulation for such conditions or situation. 
This does not appear to be a recurrent type of variance request in this zoning 
district as a whole. On this block of Eagle Street, however, the request is not 
uncommon due to the short front setback that exists. Staff does not recommend 
amending the zoning ordinance to permit a decrease in front setback for this 
particular neighborhood only. It is more prudent to consider these requests as 
they arise. 
  
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of 
actions of the property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created.  
The problem is not self-created except in the sense that the applicant would like a 
larger patio. 
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density 
would unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted 
purpose, or would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome.  
Without the requested variance, the applicant would not be permitted to enlarge 
his patio. Whether that is unnecessarily burdensome is a decision for the ZBA. 
 
 8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome 
the inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
The reason the applicant requests the variance is that a larger patio is desired. 
The applicant has presented photographs of other homes in the immediate area 
with larger porches/patios than that of the applicant. The ZBA needs to decide if a 
larger patio is an adequate reason for a variance.  
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 


	05-20-2013 ZBA Agenda pg
	Agenda pg. 2

	02-25-2013 minutes draft
	Minutes pg. 2

	#6. Four Leaf Sign Staff Report
	Four Leaf ZBA Application 4-24-13
	Application
	App. pg. 2
	App. pg. 3
	Application Fee
	Applicant Responses
	App Responses pg. 2
	App Responses pg. 3

	Diagram
	Existing Sign
	Dimensions of Existing Sign
	Preliminary Signage as Requested

	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT

	#7. Todd Setback Variance Staff Report
	Application 
	App. pg. 2
	App. pg. 3
	Photos
	Photo 2
	Photo 3
	Photo 4
	Photo 5
	Photo 6


	Eagle_St_327_Setbacks
	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT
	Staff Findings pg. 2


	#8. Stack Setback Variance Staff Report
	Stack Application 
	App. pg. 2 
	App. pg. 3

	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT
	Staff Findings pg. 2



